

Examiners' report

INCLUDED ON THE KS4 PERFORMANCE TABLES

OCR Level 1/Level 2

Cambridge National in
Child Development

J809

For first teaching in 2022 | Version 1

R057 January 2024 series

ocr.org.uk/cambridgenationals





Contents

Introduction	3
R057 series overview	4
Section A overview	5
Question 1 (a) (i)	5
Question 1 (a) (ii)	5
Question 1 (b)	6
Question 1 (c)	6
Question 1 (d)	7
Question 2 (a)	8
Question 2 (b) (i)	10
Question 2 (b) (ii)	10
Question 3 (a)	11
Question 3 (b) (i)	11
Question 3 (b) (ii)	11
Question 3 (c) (i)	12
Question 3 (c) (ii)	12
Section B overview	13
Question 4 (a)	13
Question 4 (b)	15
Question 4 (c)	16
Question 5 (a)	16
Question 5 (b) (i)	17
Question 5 (b) (ii)	17
Question 5 (c)	
Question 6 (a) (i)	18
Question 6 (a) (ii)	19
Question 6 (b)	20

Introduction

Our examiners' reports are produced to offer constructive feedback on candidates' performance in the examinations. They provide useful guidance for future candidates.

The reports will include a general commentary on candidates' performance, identify technical aspects examined in the questions and highlight good performance and where performance could be improved. A selection of candidate answers is also provided. The reports will also explain aspects which caused difficulty and why the difficulties arose, whether through a lack of knowledge, poor examination technique, or any other identifiable and explainable reason.

Where overall performance on a question/question part was considered good, with no particular areas to highlight, these questions have not been included in the report.

A full copy of the question paper and the mark scheme can be downloaded from <u>Teach Cambridge</u>.

Would you prefer a Word version?

Did you know that you can save this PDF as a Word file using Acrobat Professional?

Simply click on File > Export to and select Microsoft Word

(If you have opened this PDF in your browser you will need to save it first. Simply right click anywhere on the page and select **Save as...** to save the PDF. Then open the PDF in Acrobat Professional.)

If you do not have access to Acrobat Professional there are a number of **free** applications available that will also convert PDF to Word (search for PDF to Word converter).

R057 series overview

For the externally assessed Unit R057 most candidates answered all the questions, achieving a wide range of marks. Where candidates had been taught all the Topic Areas, they successfully applied their knowledge and understanding to each question. There were very few 'no response' answers; often these were for single word, factual responses indicating a gap in the candidate's knowledge. Time appears to have been used effectively as all questions were attempted by most candidates, suggesting that they had sufficient time to produce their responses to all questions.

When answering Level of Response questions, many candidates were able to get Level 2 but were unable to get to Level 3. Candidates who were more successful avoided listing content and demonstrated their subject knowledge by producing well developed responses, meeting the requirements of the command word, and using appropriate terminology consistently.

Most candidates completed all questions on the examination paper, and where they had used the extra pages at the back of the script, these were well signposted.

Handwriting was legible overall and there were very few scripts that were challenging to decipher and mark.

Candidates who did well on this paper Candidates who did less well on this paper generally: generally: made sure that their responses to Section A did not address the question's command word, questions fully related to the scenario provided e.g. explain, describe, or discuss

- produced well developed and detailed responses to Level of Response questions 2 (a) and 4 (a)
- demonstrated accurate knowledge of:
 - Question 1(a) (i) and (ii) pre-conception health
 - Question 1 (b) Folic acid
 - o Question 2 (b) (i) and (ii) checks during the physical examination
 - Question 3 mumps
 - Question 5 (b) (i) and (ii) Intrauterine system (IUS).

- lacked specific knowledge, e.g.:
 - Question 1 (a) (ii) pre-conception health
 - Question 1 (b) Folic acid 0
 - Question 1 (c) role of the midwife
 - Question 2 (b) (i) and (ii) checks during the physical examination
 - Question 4 (b) methods of assisted birth
 - Question 5 (b) (i) and (ii) Intrauterine system (IUS)
- demonstrated misconceptions in their responses, e.g. Question 3 (a) confusing the signs and symptoms of mumps with measles; Question 4 (a) describing what happens in the first stage of labour yet writing about the signs that labour has started.

Section A overview

Section A of the paper consists of three questions based in different contexts. For this paper the three scenarios are Rosa and her husband Rishi who want to try for a baby, Jamila who has just given birth to her third child in hospital, and Alex who suspects her daughter has mumps. Candidates are required to apply their knowledge of the four Topic Areas of the R057 specification to produce responses that are relevant to the scenarios.

		er e	4 .	/ 1		/ • N
	III ES	tion '	1 (а	۱ (Ή)
9	acc	COLL		ч.	, ,	

1			

(a)	Rosa and her husband Rishi want to try for their first baby. Their doctor tells them that
	pre-conception health for both of them is important. The doctor advises Rishi to lose some weight
	before they try for a baby.

(i)	State one reason why Rishi is advised by the doctor to lose weight before they try for a baby	

Most candidates were able to gain the mark, identifying correct responses such as low sperm count and harder to conceive.

Incorrect responses focused on the baby will not be healthy, or that the baby would be overweight.

Some candidates misread the question and applied their response to Rosa or thought that Rishi was female.

Question 1 (a) (ii)

(ii)	Identify three factors, other than weight, that can affect pre-conception health for men and women.					
	1					
	2					
	3	 [31				

Many candidates gained two marks for this question. Common correct responses were smoking, age, and drinking alcohol.

Drinking and drugs on their own were not accepted as they are vague responses.

Some candidates also identified weight which was in the question.

Qu	estion 1 (b)
(b)	The doctor tells Rosa to take folic acid before she becomes pregnant.
	Explain why it is important for Rosa to take folic acid before she becomes pregnant.
	[2]
	didates were less successful when answering this question. I Incorrect responses included ensuring ealthy baby, providing vitamins and minerals, and preventing Downs syndrome.
A fe	w candidates gained two marks mentioning birth defects and spina bifida.
Son	ne candidates gained one mark by stating it prevents spina bifida.
A -	annual of the language
AS	sessment for learning
As	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant.
As	
Qu	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant.
Qu	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant. estion 1 (c) Rosa becomes pregnant with her first child. She goes to her first antenatal clinic where she
Qu	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant. estion 1 (c) Rosa becomes pregnant with her first child. She goes to her first antenatal clinic where she meets the midwife.
Qu	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant. estion 1 (c) Rosa becomes pregnant with her first child. She goes to her first antenatal clinic where she meets the midwife.
Qu	Candidates need to be taught the importance of taking folic acid before becoming pregnant. estion 1 (c) Rosa becomes pregnant with her first child. She goes to her first antenatal clinic where she meets the midwife.

Many candidates provided good responses gaining two out of the three marks. The most common correct responses included being able to answer questions, checks on blood pressure, monitoring weight, checking baby's heartbeat, providing ante-natal care, and reference to feeding and bathing the baby. A few candidates included responses such as 'how to look after the baby', this would be seen as too vague and would not be credited any marks.

A few candidates included that a midwife carries out scans, which would not be credited any marks.

Question 1 (d)

(d) When Rosa is 20 weeks pregnant, she goes to the hospital for an ultrasound anomaly scan.

Identify if these statements about an ultrasound anomaly scan are true or false.

Tick (✓) the correct answer.

Statement	True (✓)	False (✓)
An ultrasound anomaly scan checks for major physical abnormalities in the baby.		
An ultrasound anomaly scan checks how far along Rosa's pregnancy is.		
An ultrasound anomaly scan checks the baby's spinal cord.		
An ultrasound anomaly scan is a screening test.		

[4]

This question was answered well, with many candidates gaining three or four marks. Where they did not achieve full marks, candidates thought that an ultrasound anomaly scan checks how far along the pregnancy is.

Question 2 (a)

(a) Jamila has just given birth to her third child in hospital.								
	Discuss the advantages and disadvantages of Jamila giving birth in hospital.							

This question was well attempted with many candidates gaining at least three or four marks. Responses considered both the advantages and disadvantages of Jamila giving birth in hospital.

Candidates who were more successful in answering this question, achieving Level 2 or Level 3, had a well-developed response showing a clear and detailed understanding of the advantages and disadvantages. They used appropriate terminology consistently and focused on the advantages and disadvantages of giving birth in hospital.

Common correct responses included advantages such as: highly trained health professionals, for example an obstetrician being available if there are complications; caesarean/forceps/ventouse deliveries and a wider selection of pain relief such as epidural.

Common correct responses for disadvantages included: noisy and unfamiliar environment; more stressful experience; limited number of visitors as visiting hours were short; would not be looked after by the midwife she is familiar with; and consideration for looking after the other children in the family.

Candidates who were less successful had provided vague responses such as 'she will be more comfortable'.

Some candidates focused on giving birth at home when discussing the disadvantages of giving birth in the hospital or had made distinct comparisons between birth in a hospital or at home throughout their response, which was not part of the question.

Exemplar 1

There are many advantages and disadvantages to Jamila. giving with in nospital. The main advantage is that Jamila canseen emergency medical care if needed, pernapi if the teast during with or the medical team decide an emergency caesaxean section is the best option for Jamila. Aditionally, damila will nove the best pain relief options, as an epidural and a pethidine injection canonly be performed in a nospital by an obstenician. Whilst giving birth in hospital, Jamilais ensuringshe is in the most sanitary place offered, and can make new friends Whilst sheis there, tearning about other people's experiencer and reassuring others with ners. However, by giving birthin a nospital, lamila hasto spend a longer periodof time away from her other two children, which cound result in them worming about Jamila, depending on their age is Jamila's two other children were young. she would need to fing childcare for them whilstene goes through the three stages of labour, or, avoid naving her partner in the delivery room with her if she decides her partner should stay with the children instead. Additionally, giving birmaway from name could increases Jamila's nerver as sne is not in a familiar environment and is instead in a loud environment of 181

This extract demonstrates the candidate applying their knowledge appropriately to respond to Question 2 (a). The response focuses on both the advantages and disadvantages of giving birth in hospital. Reference is made to the scenario and Jamila throughout. The candidate has discussed several advantages to Jamila giving birth in hospital and has used appropriate terminology, such as availability of a caesarean section and pain relief such as epidural.

The candidate also includes several disadvantages and in this extract, discusses childcare issues for her other children and hospitals being unfamiliar environments and loud.

Question 2 (b) (i)

(b)	Within 1 to 5 days after the birth the midwife will physically examine Jamila's baby. One check the
	midwife will do is a heel prick test (blood spot test).

(ı)	State one condition the neel prick test can identify.
	[1

There were very few correct responses to this question. Where candidates did gain the mark, the most common correct responses were Cystic Fibrosis, and Sickle Cell disease.

Misconception



Many candidates incorrectly thought that the heel prick test could identify conditions such as Anaemia, Diabetes and Downs Syndrome.

Candidates need to be clear about the checks that are carried out on the baby within one to five days of birth as listed on the specification.

Question 2 (b) (ii)

(ii)	Identify five	other	checks	the	midwife	will	do	during	the	physical	examination.
------	---------------	-------	--------	-----	---------	------	----	--------	-----	----------	--------------

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
	[5]

Many candidates were unable to identify other checks that the midwife would do during the physical examination within 1 to 5 days after the birth. Common incorrect responses related to APGAR, hands, head circumference, length, weight and mouth.

Question 3 (a)

3	Alex suspects her daughter has mumps because her face is swollen, particularly the jaw in front of the ears. The doctor confirms it is mumps.
(a)	Identify three other signs and symptoms of mumps.
	1
	2
	3
	[3]
esp	erally, this question was answered well with candidates gaining one or two marks. Common correct onses referred to, headache, tiredness and fever. Vague responses included temperature, and y candidates confused the signs and symptoms of mumps with measles and included redness and s.
Qu	estion 3 (b) (i)
(b)	The doctor tells Alex to apply a warm compress to her daughter's face.
(i)	State two reasons why applying a warm compress to the face will help her daughter.
	1
	2 [2]
	y candidates gained both marks for this question, the most common responses were reduces lling, helps reduce pain and soothes the area.
nco	rrect responses referred to reducing itching or lowering temperature.
Qu	estion 3 (b) (ii)
(ii)	State two other ways of treating mumps.
	1
	2
	[2]

This question was not well answered. Many candidates gave responses that were vague or incorrect therefore could not be credited any marks, e.g. medicine, antibiotics and vaccination as ways to treat mumps. More successful candidates gave specific ways such as lots of rest, drink fluids and painkillers.

\bigcirc	uest	ior	13	(c)	(i)
×	aoot	101		(\smile)	<i>,</i> ,	٠,

(c)	Describe how Alex can meet one intellectual need and one emotional need of her daughter while she is suffering from mumps.
(i)	Intellectual need
	[3]
	y candidates understood the term intellectual and described ways that Alex could meet her ghter's intellectual need to distract her and avoid her getting bored. Ways included reading books,

Many candidates understood the term intellectual and described ways that Alex could meet her daughter's intellectual need to distract her and avoid her getting bored. Ways included reading books, colouring, puzzles and schoolwork. Candidates who did not gain full marks talked about 'games' and 'toys' without being specific. Where candidates did not understand the term intellectual, they described ways of meeting physical, social or emotional needs.

Question 3 (c) (ii)

(ii)	Emotional need		
` '			
	[3]		

Generally, this question was well answered with many candidates gaining two marks.

More successful responses described how Alex could 'reassure her by giving her lots of hugs and kisses and also explain the symptoms of mumps in a way she can understand'.

Section B overview

Section B of the paper consists of three questions that are fact and knowledge based. Candidate responses do not have to relate to a particular situation or scenario.

	4.1	/ \
()	uestion 4	121
×	destion +	(<i>a</i>)

ı a)	There are three stages of labour, stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3.
	Describe what happens during the first stage of labour (stage 1).
	[6]

A complete range of responses were given for this question, although mainly Level 1 and Level 2. Very few candidates provided well developed response and were able to gain marks in Level 3.

Many candidates wrote about the signs that could indicate labour has started, e.g. a show and waters breaking rather than what happens during Stage 1 of labour.

Candidates that were more successful described the cervix opening, contractions, pain relief may be required as contractions get closer together and stronger, and the cervix dilating 8 to 10 centimetres. However, many responses were muddled with brief descriptions. Some candidates described the actual birth, referring to aspects of Stage 2 and Stage 3.

Exemplar 2

During stage one of labour, a mother will begin to see to all of the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother will begin to see may all of the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather and the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather and the amnibility of the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather and the mother and the mother may break that he hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather and the mother and the mother may break that he hospital spreade for a nome birth at this stage on the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather mather and the mother may break there are not the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather mather and sat nisk of the stage on the hospital spreade one of labour, a mother mather and sat nisk of the satisfience slow contractions, however these less and the mather mat

Exemplar two shows a response that describes the signs that labour has started. The candidate has given a very detailed description which cannot be credited.

Exemplar 3

Dunng the first stage of labour, the contractions
Start and the neck of the Uterus opens. This means
the baby is ready to come out and that labour
has started contractions become gover together
and more painful, meaning pain reflet may be
administered. Contractions continue and the
baby begins to make its way down the binti canai.
once the mother is fully deal ated at 8-10 cm,
the baby is born (stage 2).
V V

Exemplar three is a Level 2 response which is well developed.. The candidate has given an adequate description showing sound knowledge and has made some relevant points. Appropriate terminology is used.

To gain Level 3 candidates should include a thorough description showing detailed knowledge and understanding of the first stage of labour.

Question 4 (b)

(b)	Identify three methods of assisted birth.
	1
	2
	3
	[3]

This question was well answered with many candidates gaining three marks. Credit was given too for responses that were spelt incorrectly but were decipherable.

Assessment for learning



Candidates should be encouraged to learn and spell key terminology such as ventouse and forceps.

	4.1	/ N	Ü
<i>(</i>)	uestion 4 (١
w	ucsuon 4 i	U	ı
_			,

C)	Describe how the birth partner can provide emotional support to the pregnant woman throughout the birth.
	[2]

Many candidates gained full marks for this question describing how the birth partner can provide emotional support. The most common response referred to the birth partner 'holding her hand to reassure her'.

A few incorrect responses were seen where candidates had not read the question correctly and described the support the partner could provide at home rather than throughout the birth.

Question 5 (a)

5

(a) Identify **three** key signs and symptoms in the table below that mean a child will need emergency medical help.

16

Key signs and symptoms	Tick (✓) if emergency medical help will be needed
Breathing difficulties	
Headache	
High fever/temperature that cannot be lowered	
Reduced appetite	
Seizures/fitting	

[3]

A well answered question with most candidates gaining full marks.

[2]

Question 5 (b) (i)

method of contraception.

(i)	Advantages
	1

(b) State two advantages and two disadvantages of using the Intrauterine system (IUS) as a

Many candidates gained at least one mark. Common correct responses included: don't have to think about daily contraception, lasts between three to five years, does not interrupt sex and periods become lighter or stop.

Less successful responses stated incorrect effectiveness of 98% and that the IUS could remain in place for ten years.

There were also vague responses from some candidates, for example, 'lasts a long time' and 'stops you getting pregnant'.

Question 5 (b) (ii)

(ii)	Disadvantages	
	1	
	2	
	2	

Candidates performed well on this question with many achieving full marks. No protection against STIs, must be fitted by a doctor, headaches, and discomfort when being inserted were the most common correct responses.

Less successful responses included incorrect answers such as does not stop you from getting pregnant, cannot get pregnant for a year and is only 98% effective.

[3]

	4.5		/ \
()	LIACTION	5	\sim
w	uestion	\cup	\cup

(c)	Explain one function of the umbilical cord in the development of the embryo and foetus.
	[2]
arri	by candidates gained full marks for this question. They were able to explain that the umbilical cord ies nutrients to the foetus which helps the foetus to develop and grow, or that it helps with breathing transporting oxygen. Very few candidates mentioned excretion and passing antibodies.
о р	pass/carry food or feed the baby were the most common incorrect responses.
Qu	estion 6 (a) (i)
6 (a)	
(i)	Entonox (gas and air) is one method of pain relief that can be given to the mother during labour.
	State three reasons why Entonox would be used for pain relief during labour.
	1
	2

Most candidates gained at least one or two marks on this question. Common responses included: easy to use, works straight away, can be controlled by the mother and calms the mother down.

18

References to relieving pain did not gain a mark as this was in the question.

Question 6 (a) (ii)

(ii)	Identify two methods of pain relief, other than Entonox, that can be given to the mother during labour.	
	1	
	2	 [2]

19

Well answered with epidural, pethidine and TENS as common responses.

Question 6 (b)

(b) Below are words that are often used in child development.

ante-natal
conception
contraction
hazard
health visitor
lanugo
menstruation
obstetrician
post-natal
vernix

Fill in the table to match the words with the correct definition.

Use the words in the box above. Use each word once or not at all.

Definition	Word
A health professional that specialises in all aspects of pregnancy and childcare.	
A white, waxy, greasy substance that covers the baby's skin when it is born.	
Something that can cause harm to others.	
The medical care which is given to a woman after giving birth.	
This occurs when the egg is fertilised by a sperm.	

[5]

Most candidates scored full marks on this question.

For the first definition the mark scheme allowed health visitor and/or obstetrician as a correct response.

Some candidates gave an incorrect response for the second definition stating lanugo rather than vernix.

An incorrect response was also given by some candidates for the fourth definition where they had used the word ante-natal rather than post-natal.

20

© OCR 2024

Supporting you

Teach Cambridge

Make sure you visit our secure website <u>Teach Cambridge</u> to find the full range of resources and support for the subjects you teach. This includes secure materials such as set assignments and exemplars, online and on-demand training.

Don't have access? If your school or college teaches any OCR qualifications, please contact your exams officer. You can <u>forward them this link</u> to help get you started.

Reviews of marking

If any of your students' results are not as expected, you may wish to consider one of our post-results services. For full information about the options available visit the OCR website.

Access to Scripts

We've made it easier for Exams Officers to download copies of your candidates' completed papers or 'scripts'. Your centre can use these scripts to decide whether to request a review of marking and to support teaching and learning.

Our free, on-demand service, Access to Scripts is available via our single sign-on service, My Cambridge. Step-by-step instructions are on our website.

Keep up-to-date

We send a monthly bulletin to tell you about important updates. You can also sign up for your subject specific updates. If you haven't already, sign up here.

OCR Professional Development

Attend one of our popular professional development courses to hear directly from a senior assessor or drop in to a Q&A session. Most of our courses are delivered live via an online platform, so you can attend from any location.

Please find details for all our courses for your subject on **Teach Cambridge**. You'll also find links to our online courses on NEA marking and support.

Signed up for ExamBuilder?

ExamBuilder is the question builder platform for a range of our GCSE, A Level, Cambridge Nationals and Cambridge Technicals qualifications. Find out more.

ExamBuilder is **free for all OCR centres** with an Interchange account and gives you unlimited users per centre. We need an <u>Interchange</u> username to validate the identity of your centre's first user account for ExamBuilder.

If you do not have an Interchange account please contact your centre administrator (usually the Exams Officer) to request a username, or nominate an existing Interchange user in your department.

Active Results

Review students' exam performance with our free online results analysis tool. It is available for all GCSEs, AS and A Levels and Cambridge Nationals (examined units only).

Find out more.

Need to get in touch?

If you ever have any questions about OCR qualifications or services (including administration, logistics and teaching) please feel free to get in touch with our customer support centre.

Call us on

01223 553998

Alternatively, you can email us on **support@ocr.org.uk**

For more information visit

- □ ocr.org.uk/qualifications/resource-finder
- ocr.org.uk
- facebook.com/ocrexams
- **y** twitter.com/ocrexams
- instagram.com/ocrexaminations
- linkedin.com/company/ocr
- youtube.com/ocrexams

We really value your feedback

Click to send us an autogenerated email about this resource. Add comments if you want to. Let us know how we can improve this resource or what else you need. Your email address will not be used or shared for any marketing purposes.





Please note – web links are correct at date of publication but other websites may change over time. If you have any problems with a link you may want to navigate to that organisation's website for a direct search.



OCR is part of Cambridge University Press & Assessment, a department of the University of Cambridge.

For staff training purposes and as part of our quality assurance programme your call may be recorded or monitored. © OCR 2024 Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations is a Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in England. Registered office The Triangle Building, Shaftesbury Road, Cambridge, CB2 8EA. Registered company number 3484466. OCR is an exempt charity.

OCR operates academic and vocational qualifications regulated by Ofqual, Qualifications Wales and CCEA as listed in their qualifications registers including A Levels, GCSEs, Cambridge Technicals and Cambridge Nationals.

OCR provides resources to help you deliver our qualifications. These resources do not represent any particular teaching method we expect you to use. We update our resources regularly and aim to make sure content is accurate but please check the OCR website so that you have the most up to date version. OCR cannot be held responsible for any errors or omissions in these resources.

Though we make every effort to check our resources, there may be contradictions between published support and the specification, so it is important that you always use information in the latest specification. We indicate any specification changes within the document itself, change the version number and provide a summary of the changes. If you do notice a discrepancy between the specification and a resource, please contact us.

You can copy and distribute this resource in your centre, in line with any specific restrictions detailed in the resource. Resources intended for teacher use should not be shared with students. Resources should not be published on social media platforms or other websites.

OCR acknowledges the use of the following content: N/A

Whether you already offer OCR qualifications, are new to OCR or are thinking about switching, you can request more information using our Expression of Interest form.

Please get in touch if you want to discuss the accessibility of resources we offer to support you in delivering our qualifications.